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FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 

Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

58th Annual General Meeting 

 
Dear Shareholders, 

 

It is my honour and privilege to welcome you all to the 58th Annual General Meeting of Bangalore Fort Farms 

Limited. I sincerely thank you for taking the time to join us today and for your continued trust and confidence in our 

Company. 

 

Economic Environment and Industry Outlook: 

 

FY 2024–25 marked a year of recovery, recalibration, and resilience for the Indian economy. The agriculture and 

allied sectors continue to be a critical pillar of India's economy, employing nearly 43% of the workforce and 

contributing around 18% to the national GDP.  

 

With increasing global demand for sustainable and traceable food supply chains, India’s agro-processing industry is 

gaining strategic significance. 

 

The government’s continued push for Agri-Infrastructure, Atmanirbhar Bharat, and Production-Linked Incentive 

(PLI) schemes in food processing, along with increased investment in cold storage, warehousing, and logistics, has 

created a fertile ground for agri-businesses like ours to thrive 

 
Performance Overview: 

 

The financial year 2024-25 has been a period of steady growth and focused execution. I am pleased to share that your 

Company has recorded Gross Revenue of Rs.41.41 Crores as against Rs.37.34 Crores in the previous year, reflecting 

a growth of over 10.9%. 

 

Profit Before Tax has increased to Rs.0.55 crores from Rs.0.48 crores, and Net Profit After Tax stood at Rs.0.49 

crores, up from Rs.0.34 crores in the previous financial year, a growth of over 44%. This has been possible due to 

consistent improvement in operational efficiency and a prudent approach to cost management. 

 

Our EBITDA also witnessed healthy growth, and we have maintained a strong balance sheet, with comfortable 

liquidity and low debt levels. This financial performance is a testament to the resilience of our business model and the 

dedicated efforts of our team. 

 
Operational Highlights: 

 

During the year, we continued our focus on strengthening our core business activities. Operational efficiency, digital 

enablement, and better inventory control led to improvements in our bottom line. Our warehousing and agri-logistics 

verticals continue to be our primary growth drivers, and we are continuously exploring ways to enhance capacity, 

improve productivity, and widen our reach. 

The Board has approved several strategic initiatives to scale our warehousing operations further and explore adjacent 

opportunities, including food processing and agri-infrastructure development. 
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Industry Environment: 

 

India’s agriculture and logistics sectors are witnessing structural transformations driven by supply chain digitization, 

policy reforms, and increased demand for integrated solutions. We are well-positioned to benefit from these trends, 

and our investments in infrastructure, manpower, and compliance are aligned with long-term sectoral growth. 

 
Corporate Governance and Compliance: 

 

Being a listed entity, we continue to uphold the highest standards of corporate governance. The Board remains 

committed to transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct. We have complied with all applicable SEBI 

regulations, Companies Act provisions, and the listing obligations under SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 

 
Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 

We believe in inclusive growth. During the year, we initiated efforts to structure our CSR Policy. The Company is 

committed to contributing meaningfully to the welfare of society. 

 
Financial Discipline and Rating: 

 

Our financial prudence has been reaffirmed through stable credit ratings and continued support from our banking 

partners. We are evaluating opportunities to optimize our capital structure, including enhancement of our authorised 

share capital, to support future expansion. 

 
Business Strategy and Operations 

 

At Bangalore Fort Farms Limited, we remain focused on strengthening our core businesses across agri-products and 

food processing. In the last year, we intensified our efforts in product diversification and expanded our domestic 

distribution network. 

 

Our initiatives include: 

• Increased automation at key processing units to ensure quality control and reduce wastage. 

• Strong emphasis on sustainable packaging and environmentally responsible practices. 

 

Our agri business continues to remain a key focus area. India's position as a leading agro-exporter, supported by 

favorable trade policies, offers tremendous opportunity. We aim to scale up our global footprint, particularly in regions 

like Southeast Asia, the Middle East, and Africa. 

 

 
 

Looking Ahead: 

 

As we look forward, we are optimistic about the future. Our strategy will remain focused on: 

 

• Scaling warehousing and agri-logistics operations 

• Diversifying our revenue streams through value-added services 

• Maintaining capital efficiency and cost control 

• Strengthening our governance and compliance framework 
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The proposed appointments of Independent Directors and the reconstitution of the Board will further strengthen our 

governance and add valuable experience to guide the next phase of our growth journey. 

 
Sectoral Opportunities: 

 

The Indian agro-industry is undergoing a transformation. Key trends shaping the future include: 

 

• Farm-to-Fork Traceability – Technology adoption in agriculture and food processing is enabling real-time 

tracking, enhancing transparency and trust in the value chain. 

• Organic and Clean Label Products – Consumers are increasingly demanding natural, chemical-free, and 

ethically sourced food. We are developing strategies to enter this niche. 

• Agri-Logistics and Cold Chain Development – With growing perishables trade, we see logistics as a key 

enabler and an area we aim to explore strategically in future. 

 
Acknowledgment: 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our shareholders, employees, business 

partners, and stakeholders for their continued support. A special word of appreciation goes out to our employees at all 

levels whose commitment and hard work have driven our progress. I also thank my colleagues on the Board for their 

wise counsel and support throughout the year. 

 

Let us move forward together with confidence and a shared purpose to build a stronger and more resilient Bangalore 

Fort Farms Limited. 

 

Thank You 

For and on behalf of 

 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

Mahendra Singh (Managing Director)  

DIN: 07692374  
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FROM THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DESK 

 

 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

It is my privilege to address you at the 58th Annual General Meeting of Bangalore Fort Farms Limited. I trust that 

you and your families are in good health and high spirits. 

 

As the Chief Financial Officer, I am pleased to present an overview of the financial performance of the Company 

for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. The past year has been a period of consolidation, growth, and prudent 

financial stewardship, as we navigated a dynamic economic environment while continuing to build long-term value 

for our stakeholders. 

 

Financial Performance Overview: 

 

Your Company has achieved solid financial results in FY 2024–25, marked by improved revenue and profitability 

across our operations. 

 

Some key highlights of the financial performance are as follows: 

• Gross Revenue increased to Rs.41.41 crores in FY 2024–25, as compared to Rs.37.34 crores in the previous 

year – a 10.9% growth, reflecting the Company’s strong market presence and operational efficiency. 

• Profit Before Interest and Depreciation rose to Rs.1.64 crores, from Rs.1.29 crores last year. 

• Finance Costs stood at Rs.0.74 crores, and Depreciation at Rs.0.34 crores, both of which were effectively 

managed to support the bottom line. 

• Profit Before Tax increased to Rs.0.55 crores, from Rs.0.48 crores in FY 2023–24. 

• Net Profit After Tax stood at Rs.0.49 crores, compared to Rs.0.34 crores in the previous year – registering 

a 44% year-on-year growth. 

 

Despite sectoral headwinds and inflationary pressures on input costs, we were able to maintain a stable margin profile 

through cost optimization, working capital efficiency, and tight financial control. 

 

Balance Sheet Strength: 

 

• Net Worth of the Company has grown to Rs.8.22 Crores, reflecting a strong capital base and long-term 

financial stability. 

• Our debt levels remain well-aligned with our operating cash flows, and we continue to follow a conservative 

approach in financial leverage. 

• We have ensured that adequate provisions and reserves are maintained, in line with best accounting and 

compliance practices. 

 

Financial Governance and Credit Discipline: 

 

The Company continues to uphold strong standards of financial governance, internal controls, and regulatory 

compliance. All statutory obligations, including those under SEBI (LODR) Regulations and the Companies Act, 

2013, have been duly complied with. 

I am also pleased to report that our financial health remains strong, and our credit profile continues to reflect the 

confidence of financial institutions and stakeholders. 

 

 

Strategic Priorities Ahead: 

 

Looking forward, our focus will remain on: 

• Driving revenue growth through new product lines and expanded markets. 

• Improving operational efficiency through digital transformation and process automation. 

• Maintaining fiscal prudence, while investing selectively in capacity expansion and innovation. 
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• Exploring capital structure optimization to improve returns for shareholders. 

 

Acknowledgments: 

 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors for their continued guidance, the auditors and 

financial advisors for their support, and my colleagues across departments for their dedication and teamwork. 

 

Finally, my sincere gratitude to you—our valued shareholders—for your trust and belief in the Company’s vision. 

As we move forward into the new financial year, I remain confident in our collective ability to create sustained value 

and achieve even greater milestones. 

 

 

Thank you. 

For and on behalf of 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

(Bidhan Chandra Roy) 

Chief Financial Officer 
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NOTICE OF 58TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 58TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 

MEMBERS OF BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 

25.09.2025 AT 11:00 A.M. THROUGH VC/OAVM, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING 

BUSINESS: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

the Auditors thereon.  

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon, as 

circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374), who retires by 

rotation at this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby reappointed as a Director of the Company, 

liable to retire by rotation.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To consider and approve the increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company: 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61, 64 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), read with the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), the Listing 

Agreement(s) entered into with the Stock Exchange(s), and subject to such approvals, consents, 

permissions and sanctions as may be necessary under applicable laws, the Authorized Share Capital of 

the Company be and is hereby increased from Rs.5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crore only) divided into 

50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.25,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Twenty-Five Crore only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- 

(Rupees Ten) each, by the creation of additional 2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- 

(Rupees Ten) each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be 

and is hereby substituted with the following: 
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“V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five 

Crore only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees 

Ten) each with power to increase, reduce, consolidate, sub-divide or otherwise alter the share 

capital and to reclassify, consolidate and divide the shares in the capital for the time being into 

several classes, with such rights, privileges or conditions attached thereto as may be determined 

by or in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and to vary, modify or 

abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Act 

or the Articles of Association of the Company for the time being in force.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 

the “Board”, which term shall include any Committee thereof) and/or the Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby severally authorised to take such steps as may be necessary, desirable or 

expedient to give effect to this resolution, including but not limited to filing of necessary forms and 

returns with the Registrar of Companies, intimations to Stock Exchange(s), depositories and such other 

authorities as may be required under applicable laws, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 

as they may in their absolute discretion deem necessary in this regard.” 

4. Re-designation of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) from Managing Director to Whole- 

Time Director and approve the payment of remuneration: 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 196, 197, 198 and 203 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with applicable rules 

thereunder and Schedule V to the Act, and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”), 

including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, and 

subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, the consent of the Members be and is hereby 

accorded to the re-designation and appointment of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) as Whole-

time Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years with effect from 25th September, 2025 to 

24th September, 2030, upon the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the 

explanatory statement annexed to this Notice. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374), upon his re-designation as 

Whole-time Director, shall be liable to retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of Section 

152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon such re-designation, Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) 

shall cease to hold the office of Managing Director of the Company, but shall continue as a member of 

the Board in the capacity of Whole-time Director, liable to retire by rotation, and the terms and 

conditions of his appointment, including remuneration, shall be as determined by the Board of 

Directors, within the limits already approved by the Members from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year 

during the term of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) as Whole-time Director, the remuneration as 

set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice be paid or granted to Mr. Mahendra Singh 

(DIN: 07692374) as minimum remuneration provided that the total remuneration by way of salary and 

all other allowances shall not exceed the limits prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to 

the Act as amended from time to time or any equivalent statutory re-enactment(s) thereof. Such 
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remuneration shall continue to be paid on the same terms as previously approved by the Board of 

Directors and shall be subject to the conditions set out under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 

and other applicable laws. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or the Company 

Secretary be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 

be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution, including making necessary filings 

with the Registrar of Companies and intimations to the Stock Exchange(s).” 

5. Appointment of Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN:11074878) as Managing Director and approve the 

payment of remuneration: 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule 

V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made 

thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force), the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), and the Articles of 

Association of the Company, and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of the Members of the Company be and 

is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN: 11074878) as the Managing 

Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years commencing from 25th September, 2025 to 24th 

September, 2030. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN: 11074878), upon his appointment as 

Managing Director, shall be liable to retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year 

during the term of Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN: 11074878) as Managing Director, the remuneration as set 

out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice be paid or granted to Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN: 

11074878) as minimum remuneration provided that the total remuneration by way of salary and all 

other allowances shall not exceed the limits prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the 

Act as amended from time to time or any equivalent statutory re-enactment(s) thereof. Such 

remuneration shall continue to be paid on the same terms as by the Board of Directors and shall be 

subject to the conditions set out under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 

laws. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including its Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee) be and are hereby authorised to alter, vary or revise the terms and conditions of appointment 

and/or remuneration of Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN: 11074878) within the overall limits specified under 

the Act and Schedule V, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, 

expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution, including making necessary filings with the 

Registrar of Companies and disclosures to the Stock Exchange(s).” 
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6. Appointment of Mr. Pranay Tandon (DIN:11068992) as Independent Director: 

 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act and the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) 

Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and based on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of 

the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Pranay Tandon 

(DIN: 11068992), who has submitted a declaration of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act 

and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR Regulations, as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from 

25th September, 2025 to 24th September, 2030. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 

be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

7. Appointment of Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN:11243035) as Independent Director: 

 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act and the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) and 

Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), and based on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of 

the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 

11243035), who has submitted a declaration of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR Regulations, as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from 

25th September, 2025 to 24th September, 2030. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 

be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

8. Appointment of Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN:11243047) as Independent Director: 

 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act and the 
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Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), and based on the recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the consent of the members of 

the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 

11243047), who has submitted a declaration of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR Regulations, as a Non-Executive, Independent Director of the 

Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from 

25th September, 2025 to 24th September, 2030. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 

be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

9. To approve the change of name of the Company: 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13, 14, 15 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with applicable Rules framed thereunder 

including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, 

Regulation 45 and other applicable provisions of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including any amendment, modification 

or variation thereof or any other applicable law(s), regulation(s), guideline(s) and subject to the such 

approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as may be required from the Central Government, Stock 

Exchange(s) or appropriate regulatory and statutory authorities, the approval of the members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to change the name of the Company from “Bangalore Fort Farms 

Limited” to “Grameva Limited or Grameva Fort Farms Limited” or any other name as approved by the 

concerned authority and the name clause in the Memorandum of Association be substituted as name 

approved by the concerned authority; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 13, 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Act, upon issuance of the fresh certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies 

consequent upon change of name, the old name “Bangalore Fort Farms Limited” wherever as appearing 

in the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association and other relevant documents, papers, 

and places of the Company, as applicable, be substituted by the new name “Grameva Limited or 

Grameva Fort Farms Limited or any names approved by concerned authority. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), which 

includes any Committee of the Board or any officer/executive/representative and/or any other person 

so authorized by the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, 

deeds, things and execute all such application, forms, deeds, documents, instruments, writings and do 

such acts, deeds, in its absolute discretion including any modifications, changes, variations, alterations 

or revisions stipulated by any authority, while according approval, consent as may be considered 

necessary, expedient or desirable, including power to sub-delegate its authority, and to appoint 

counsels/consultant and advisors, file applications/petitions, issue notices, advertisements, obtain orders 

in order to give effect to the foregoing resolution or otherwise as may be considered necessary and deem 
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fit by the Board to be in the best interest of the Company and to settle any questions, issues, difficulties 

or doubts that may arise in this regard without further consent or approval of the members of the 

Company.” 

For: Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

 

Milan Bhatia 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mem No.: A34850 

 

Place: Kolkata  

Date: 26.08.2025 
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NOTES 

 

Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ 

P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and 

notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 

force and as amended from time to time), companies are allowed to hold AGM through Video 

Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at 

a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 

 

1. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for 

this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to 

attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-

voting. 

 

2. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 

for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 

(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 

the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secretarial 

Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility 

of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 

this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 

facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the 

date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

5. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.bangalorefortfarms.com The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and CSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.cseindia.com 

respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

6. AGM to be convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time  

http://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on 22.09.2025, Monday, at 9:00 A.M. IST and ends on 

24.09.2025, Wednesday at 5:00 P.M. IST The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 

for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 

Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 18.09.2025, may cast their vote electronically. The 

voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 18.09.2025. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 

below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 

will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered 

email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you 

to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 

added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


Page | 15  
 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 
Annual Report 2024-2025 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 

e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi 

/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing 

my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, 

the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that 

the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat 

mode) login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at above-mentioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 

no. 1800-21-09911  
  

http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 

ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 

need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 

Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 

and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-

Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 

to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to vjmrahul@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their 

Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board 

Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 

five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 

Senior Manager, NSDL  at evoting@nsdl.com  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of 

PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

(cs@bangalorefortfarms.com and milanbhatia55@gmail.com ). 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 

16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 

PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) to (cs@bangalorefortfarms.com and milanbhatia55@gmail.com). If you are an 

Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 

login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring 

user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

 

 

mailto:vjmrahul@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:cs@bangalorefortfarms.com
mailto:milanbhatia55@gmail.com
mailto:cs@bangalorefortfarms.com
mailto:milanbhatia55@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE 

AS UNDER: - 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 

for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 

AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 

for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 

VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 

Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” 

placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 

VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that 

the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 

User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 

mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 

at cs@bangalorefortfarms.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting 

may pre-register themselves by sending a request from their registered e-mail address 

mentioning their names, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number at 

9038781904 between 22.09.2025, 9:00 a.m. (IST) and 24.09.2025, 5:00 p.m.. (IST). Only those 

Shareholders who have pre-registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their 

mailto:cs@bangalorefortfarms.com
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views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of 

speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

 

7. Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 

Item No. 3 – To consider and approve the increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company presently stands at Rs.5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crore 

only) divided into 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 

In order to facilitate the Company’s future fund-raising plans, issuance of further shares/securities for 

business expansion, strategic investments, and other corporate requirements, it is proposed to increase 

the Authorised Share Capital of the Company to Rs.25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crore only) 

divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- each, by creation of additional 

2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- each ranking pari passu in all respects with the 

existing equity shares of the Company. 

Consequently, the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company is required to 

be substituted with the following: 

“V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crore 

only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each, with 

power to increase, reduce, consolidate, subdivide or otherwise alter the share capital of the Company 

and to reclassify or convert the same into other kinds of share capital, from time to time, in accordance 

with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the 

Company.” 

The proposed increase in Authorised Share Capital and consequent amendment of the Memorandum of 

Association require approval of the Members by way of an Ordinary Resolution pursuant to the 

provisions of Sections 61 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice for approval of 

the Members. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution, except to the extent of their 

shareholding in the Company, if any. 

Item No.4-Re-designation of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN:07692374) from Managing Director to 

Whole-time Director 

Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374), has been associated with the Company and has been serving as 

the Managing Director. During his tenure, he has played a pivotal role in steering the Company’s 

growth, strengthening operational efficiencies, and enhancing stakeholder value. 

Mr. Singh has expressed his intention to step down from the position of Managing Director with effect 

from 25.09.2025. However, considering his vast experience, deep understanding of the Company’s 

operations, and long-standing association, he has expressed his willingness to continue contributing to 

the Company in an executive capacity as a Whole-time Director. 

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 26.08.2025, after due consideration of his request and 

the benefits of his continued association, approved the proposal for re-designating Mr. Mahendra Singh 

(DIN: 07692374) as a Whole-time Director, liable to retire by rotation, in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company. 
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a. Annual Remuneration: Rs.12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Lakh only) per annum. 

b. Performance Bonus: As may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 

Board, within the overall limits prescribed under the Act. 

c. Other Benefits: Leave Encashment as per the Company’s Policy and Gratuity as per the Payment of 

Gratuity Act, 1972. 

d. Service Contract Period: From 25th September, 2025. 

e. Notice Period: Two months. 

f. Severance Fees: Not payable. 

g. Performance Linked Incentive: As may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, within the overall limits prescribed. 

h. Reimbursement of Expenses: As per the Company’s Policy. 

i. Minimum Remuneration: It is proposed that in the event of loss, absence or inadequacy of profits in 

any financial year during the tenure of Mr. Singh, the Company shall pay him such remuneration as 

already approved by the Members, by way of salary, allowances, perquisites, benefits, performance 

bonus and other emoluments, as minimum remuneration for a period of Five (5) years commencing 

from 25th September, 2025, notwithstanding such inadequacy or absence of profits. 

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of profits, 

subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Mr. Singh, shall not be paid any sitting fee for attending the meeting of the Board or any Committee 

thereof. 

The draft agreement between the Company and Mr. Mahendra Singh, setting out the terms and 

conditions of his appointment and remuneration, shall be available for inspection in electronic mode 

and at Registered Office up to and including the date of the AGM. 

Variation: The Board of Directors or any Committee may alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 

appointment and/or agreement (including the amount of salary, commission and also type & amount of 

perquisites and other benefits payable to Mr. Singh) in such manner as may be agreed between the 

Board or Committee thereof and Mr. Singh, provided however that the remuneration payable to Mr. 

Singh may exceed subject to approval of Members and in compliance with Schedule V, the limits 

specified in the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, including any amendment(s), modification(s), 

variation(s) or reenactment thereof. The above payment shall be governed by the provisions of Schedule 

V to the ‘Act’ or any amendment thereof. The “Board” commends the Special Resolution set out at 

Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders. The draft of the Agreement, proposed to be 

entered into between Company and Mr. Singh is available for inspection in electronic mode without 

payment of any fee by the Members upto the date of the AGM. 

The above material terms of re-appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Singh as set out in the 

accompanying Notice should be considered an abstract and the Memorandum of Interest, pursuant to 

the provision of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board is of the view that the continued association of Mr. Singh, in the capacity of an Executive 

Director, will be in the best interests of the Company, as it will enable the Company to continue availing 

his strategic guidance and insights, without the day-to-day managerial responsibilities associated with 

the role of Whole-time Director. 
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General information as required under Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given 

below: 

1. Nature of Industry: Agro-based Industry 

2. Date of commencement of commercial production: 24.10.1996 

3. In case of new companies expected date of commencement of activities as per project 

approved by financial Institution appearing in the prospectus: NA 

4. Financial performance based on given Indicator: As per Audited Financial Results for the 

year ended. 

(Rs. in Crores) 

Particulars (Standalone) FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 41.41 37.34 

Profit before taxation 0.56 0.48 

Tax Expense 0.07 0.13 

Profit for the year 0.49 0.34 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 0.07 0.001 

Total Comprehensive Income 0.49 0.35 

at year end (EPS) 1.02 0.72 

5. Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: NIL 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE WHOLETIME DIRECTOR 

a. Background Details, Job Profile and his suitability: Mr. Mahendra Singh, (DIN: 07692374) has 

been associated with the Company as Managing Director since 18.06.2023 and has played a key role in 

providing strategic direction and leadership to the Company. He possesses rich experience of over 30 

years in agriculture, trading and packaging Sector with expertise in business development, operations 

and management. Under his guidance, the Company has strengthened its operations and enhanced its 

stakeholder value. He is now proposed to be re-designated as a Whole-time Director of the Company. 

b. Past Remuneration: Rs.1,20,000/- p.a.  (Rupees One Lacs Twenty Thousand only) 

c. Recognition or Rewards: He is widely respected in the industry for his leadership and contribution 

to Agriculture and Trading Sectors. 

d. Remuneration Proposed: Rs.12,00,000/- p.a. (Rupees Twelve Lacs only) 

e. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the 

position and person: The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Managing Director/Whole-time 

Director is in line with the remuneration levels prevalent in the industry, considering the size of the 
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Company, its business operations, and the profile of the position and the individual. The proposed 

remuneration is commensurate with the responsibilities entrusted to the managerial personnel, their 

professional qualifications, experience and long association with the Company. It is comparable to the 

remuneration being paid to similarly placed managerial personnel in other companies of similar size in 

the industry. 

f. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the 

Managerial Personnel: Nil 

 

OTHER INFORMATION 

a. Reasons for Loss or Inadequate Profits: The Company has reported inadequate profits during the 

year primarily on account of increased cost of raw materials, higher finance costs and overall slowdown 

in market demand, which adversely impacted margins. In addition, intense competition, fluctuations in 

commodity prices and certain one-time expenses have further contributed to the pressure on 

profitability. 

b. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company is undertaking several 

initiatives to improve its operational and financial performance. These include optimizing the cost 

structure through better procurement and supply chain management, reducing finance costs by prudent 

treasury planning, and improving capacity utilization. The Company is also focusing on strengthening 

its marketing and sales network, diversifying its product portfolio, exploring new customer segments, 

and enhancing operational efficiencies through adoption of technology and process improvements. 

These measures are expected to help the Company improve profitability and achieve sustainable growth 

in the coming years. 

c. Expected increase in productivity and profit in measurable terms: With the implementation of 

the aforesaid initiatives, the Company expects to achieve an improvement in operational efficiency and 

cost optimization. It is anticipated that productivity will increase by around 10–15% over the next 2–3 

years, supported by better capacity utilization and process improvements. Consequently, the Company 

projects an improvement in profitability margins by 8–12% in the medium term, subject to normal 

market conditions. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No.4 of this Notice for the approval of members 

by way of an Ordinary Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except Mr. 

Mahendra Singh, is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Item No. 5 – Appointment of Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN:11074878) as Managing Director 

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee at its meeting held on 26.08.2025, appointed Mr. Deepak Kandoi (DIN: 11074878) as the 

Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from 25th September, 

2025, subject to approval of the Members of the Company. 

Your Company is engaged in the business of jute and agro products, including processing, trading and 

allied activities. Mr. Deepak Kandoi has wide expertise, knowledge and business acumen in these fields, 

which will be beneficial for the overall growth and management of the Company. His appointment as 

Managing Director would be in the best interest of the Company. The remuneration proposed for Mr. 

Deepak Kandoi is commensurate with industry standards and the size of the Company. Mr. Deepak 
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Kandoi has no pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company apart from his entitlement 

to remuneration. 

The terms and conditions of his appointment are set out herein below: 

1. Tenure of Appointment 

The appointment of Mr. Deepak Kandoi as Managing Director is for a period of 5 (five) years 

with effect from 25th September, 2025. 

2. Duties and Responsibilities 

Mr. Deepak Kandoi, as Managing Director of the Company, shall, subject to the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the overall superintendence and control of the Board of Directors, 

perform such duties and exercise such powers as may, from time to time, be entrusted to or 

conferred upon him by the Board. 

3. Remuneration 

Mr. Deepak Kandoi shall be entitled to remuneration in terms of Schedule V of the Companies 

Act, 2013 as under: 

(a) Basic Salary – Rs.1,00,000/- per month w.e.f. 25.09.2025 (net of taxes), with an annual 

increase of up to 25% from 1st April, 2026, subject to recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board. Since the salary is net of tax, the Company 

shall bear the tax liability, which shall be treated as a perquisite (subject to a maximum of 30% of 

basic salary). 

(b) Perquisites – Reimbursement of expenses incurred up to 10% of the basic salary towards gas, 

electricity, water, furnishings, and house maintenance, over and above the basic salary. The 

perquisites shall be valued as per the Income-tax Act, 1961 and rules made thereunder. 

(c) Minimum Remuneration – It is proposed that in the event of loss, absence or inadequacy of 

profits in any financial year during the tenure of Mr. Kandoi, the Company shall pay him such 

remuneration as already approved by the Members, by way of salary, allowances, perquisites, 

benefits, performance bonus and other emoluments, as minimum remuneration for a period of three 

(3) years commencing from 25th September, 2025, notwithstanding such inadequacy or absence 

of profits. 

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of 

profits, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4. Other Terms of Appointment 

(a) Mr. Deepak Kandoi shall not become interested or otherwise concerned, directly or through his 

relatives, in any selling agency of the Company. 

(b) The terms and conditions of his appointment may be altered, varied or modified by the Board, 

subject to compliance with Schedule V of the Act and other applicable provisions. 

 

(c) Either party may terminate the appointment by giving six months’ notice in writing or payment 

of six months’ remuneration in lieu thereof. 
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(d) The Company may terminate his appointment without notice or payment in lieu thereof in case 

of misconduct, breach of terms, or loss of confidence expressed by the Board. 

 

(e) In case of incapacity to discharge official duties due to physical or mental reasons, the Board 

may terminate his appointment on such terms as it deems appropriate. 

 

(f) Upon cessation of employment, Mr. Deepak Kandoi shall resign from all offices held in 

subsidiaries/associates of the Company without any claim for compensation. 

 

(g) Mr. Deepak Kandoi will not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

The Board is of the opinion that the remuneration payable to Mr. Deepak Kandoi, as Managing Director, 

is commensurate with his duties and responsibilities. His association as Managing Director will be 

beneficial to and in the interest of the Company. 

Mr. Kandoi, shall not be paid any sitting fee for attending the meeting of the Board or any Committee 

thereof. 

The draft agreement between the Company and Mr. Kandoi, setting out the terms and conditions of his 

appointment and remuneration, shall be available for inspection in electronic mode and at registered 

office up to and including the date of the AGM. 

Variation : The Board of Directors or any Committee may alter and vary the terms and conditions of 

the appointment and/or agreement (including the amount of salary, commission and also type & amount 

of perquisites and other benefits payable to Mr. Kandoi) in such manner as may be agreed between the 

Board or Committee thereof and Mr. Kandoi, provided however that the remuneration payable to Mr. 

Kandoi shall may exceed the limits specified in the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, including 

any amendment(s), modification(s), variation(s) or reenactment thereof. The above payment shall be 

governed by the provisions of Schedule V to the ‘Act’ or any amendment thereof. The “Board” 

commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.  

The draft of the Agreement, proposed to be entered into between Company and Mr. Kandoi is available 

for inspection in electronic mode without payment of any fee by the Members upto the date of the 

AGM. 

The above material terms of appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Kandoi as set out in the 

accompanying Notice should be considered an abstract and the Memorandum of Interest, pursuant to 

the provision of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board is of the view that the continued association of Mr. Kandoi, in the capacity of Managing 

Director, will be in the best interests of the Company, as it will enable the Company to continue availing 

his strategic guidance and insights, without the day-to-day managerial responsibilities associated with 

the role of Managing Director. 

General information as required under Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given 

below: 

1. Nature of Industry: Agro-based Industry 
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2. Date of commencement commercial production: 24.10.1996  

3. In case of new companies expected date of commencement of activities as per project 

approved by financial Institution appearing in the prospectus: NA 

4. Financial performance based on given Indicator: As per Audited Financial Results for the 

year ended. 

(Rs. in Crores) 

Particulars (Standalone) FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 41.41 37.34 

Profit before taxation 0.56 0.48 

Tax Expense 0.07 0.13 

Profit for the year 0.49 0.34 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 0.07 0.001 

Total Comprehensive Income 0.49 0.35 

at year end (EPS) 1.02 0.72 

6. Foreign investments or collaborations, If any: Nil 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 

a. Background Details, Job Profile and his suitability: Mr. Deepak Kandoi is a qualified Chartered 

Accountant with extensive experience in finance, corporate strategy, and management. He has worked 

across diverse sectors, providing strategic and financial advisory services, handling corporate 

restructuring, regulatory compliance, and business planning. His professional acumen and analytical 

skills have contributed to effective decision-making and organizational growth in his previous roles. 

b. Past Remuneration: NIL 

c. Recognition or Rewards: He is widely respected in the industry for his leadership and contribution 

to Agriculture and Trading Sectors. 

d. Remuneration Proposed: Rs.12,00,000/- p.a. (Rupees Twelve Lacs only) 

e. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the 

position and person: The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Managing Director/Whole-time 

Director is in line with the remuneration levels prevalent in the industry, considering the size of the 

Company, its business operations, and the profile of the position and the individual. The proposed 

remuneration is commensurate with the responsibilities entrusted to the managerial personnel, their 

professional qualifications, experience and long association with the Company. It is comparable to the 

remuneration being paid to similarly placed managerial personnel in other companies of similar size in 

the industry. 
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f. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the 

Managerial Personnel: Nil 

OTHER INFORMATION 

a. Reasons for Loss or Inadequate Profits: The Company has reported inadequate profits during the 

year primarily on account of increased cost of raw materials, higher finance costs and overall slowdown 

in market demand, which adversely impacted margins. In addition, intense competition, fluctuations in 

commodity prices and certain one-time expenses have further contributed to the pressure on 

profitability. 

b. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company is undertaking several 

initiatives to improve its operational and financial performance. These include optimizing the cost 

structure through better procurement and supply chain management, reducing finance costs by prudent 

treasury planning, and improving capacity utilization. The Company is also focusing on strengthening 

its marketing and sales network, diversifying its product portfolio, exploring new customer segments, 

and enhancing operational efficiencies through adoption of technology and process improvements. 

These measures are expected to help the Company improve profitability and achieve sustainable growth 

in the coming years. 

c. Expected increase in productivity and profit in measurable terms: With the implementation of 

the aforesaid initiatives, the Company expects to achieve an improvement in operational efficiency and 

cost optimization. It is anticipated that productivity will increase by around 10–15% over the next 2–3 

years, supported by better capacity utilization and process improvements. Consequently, the Company 

projects an improvement in profitability margins by 8–12% in the medium term, subject to normal 

market conditions. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No.5 of this Notice for approval of members by 

way of a Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution, except Mr. Deepak Kandoi to the extent of his 

remuneration, in the Company. 

Item No. 6 Appointment of Mr. Pranay Tandon (DIN: 11068992) as Independent Director 

Pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Act 

and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Pranay Tandon (DIN:11068992) was, on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considered and approved by the 

Board of Directors (‘the Board’) for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 

to retire by rotation. 

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Pranay Tandon (DIN:11068992) confirming that he 

meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“SEBI LODR Regulations”). 

Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014 provides for the appointment of Independent Directors. Regulation 25 of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations also lays down the requirement for such appointment. Based on the recommendation of the 



Page | 30  
 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 
Annual Report 2024-2025 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Pranay Tandon 

(DIN:11068992) as an Independent Director under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 25 of the 

SEBI LODR Regulations, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 

25.09.2025 to 24.09.2030. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Pranay Tandon (DIN:11068992) fulfills the conditions for his 

appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the Act and the SEBI LODR Regulations and 

he is independent of the management. 

Brief profile of Mr. Pranay Tandon, including his qualifications, expertise in specific functional areas, 

and other details such as directorships and memberships/chairmanships of Committees of other Boards, 

along with his shareholding, if any, and relationship with other Directors/KMP of the Company, are 

provided in the Annexure to this Notice. 

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under the applicable provisions of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of this Notice for approval of members by 

way of a Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution, except Mr. Pranay Tandon (DIN:11068992) to 

the extent of his remuneration, in the Company. 

 

Item No. 7 – Appointment of Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 11243035) as Independent Director 

Pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Act 

and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 11243035) was, on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considered and approved by the 

Board of Directors (‘the Board’) for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 

to retire by rotation. 

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 11243035) confirming that he 

meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“SEBI LODR Regulations”). 

Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014 provides for the appointment of Independent Directors. Regulation 25 of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations also lays down the requirement for such appointment. Based on the recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Rajat Sharma as an 

Independent Director under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 25 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, 

to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 25.09.2025 to 24.09.2030. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 11243035) fulfills the conditions for his 

appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the Act and the SEBI LODR Regulations and 

he is independent of the management. 

Brief profile of Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 11243035), including his qualifications, expertise in specific 

functional areas, and other details such as directorships and memberships/chairmanships of Committees 
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of other Boards, along with his shareholding, if any, and relationship with other Directors/KMP of the 

Company, are provided in the Annexure to this Notice. 

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under the applicable provisions of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of this Notice for approval of members by 

way of a Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution, except Mr. Rajat Sharma (DIN: 11243035) to the 

extent of his remuneration, in the Company. 

Item No. 8 – Appointment of Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 11243047) as Independent Director 

Pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the Rules made thereunder including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, read with Schedule IV to the Act 

and the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 11243047) was, on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considered and approved by the 

Board of Directors (‘the Board’) for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 

to retire by rotation. 

The Company has received a declaration from Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 11243047) confirming 

that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“SEBI LODR Regulations”). 

Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014 provides for the appointment of Independent Directors. Regulation 25 of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations also lays down the requirements for such appointment. Based on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, it is proposed to appoint Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 

11243047) as an Independent Director under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 25 of the SEBI 

LODR Regulations, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 25.09.2025 

to 24.09.2030. 

In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 11243047) fulfills the conditions for her 

appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the Act and the SEBI LODR Regulations and 

she is independent of the management. 

Brief profile of Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 11243047), including her qualifications, expertise in 

specific functional areas, and other details such as directorships and memberships/chairmanships of 

Committees of other Boards, along with her shareholding, if any, and relationship with other 

Directors/KMP of the Company, are provided in the Annexure to this Notice. 

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under the applicable provisions of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 8 of this Notice for approval of members by 

way of a Special Resolution. 
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution, except Ms. Nimisha Srivastava (DIN: 11243047) 

to the extent of her remuneration, in the Company. 

Item No. 9 – To approve the change of name of the Company 

The Board of Directors, after due consideration, has proposed to change the name of the Company from 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited to: Grameva Limited” or “Grameva Fort Farms Limited” such other 

name as may be approved by the Registrar of Companies and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

The proposed change is intended to align the Company’s name with its evolving vision, strategic 

direction, and brand identity, while better representing the scope of its present and future business 

activities. 

Pursuant to Sections 13, 14 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 

Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, any change in the name of a company requires the approval of 

the members by way of a special resolution, along with the approval of the Central Government (Power 

delegated to the Registrar of Companies). The change of name will also necessitate consequential 

alterations to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company to reflect 

the new name. 

The Company has already filed an application with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for the availability 

and reservation of the proposed name. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 9 of this Notice for the approval of members 

by way of a Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 

The documents referred to in the Notice and explanatory statement, including registers, agreements, 

and other papers, will be available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the 

Company during normal business hours on all working days up to the date of the Annual General 

Meeting. Members seeking to inspect any specific document may write to the Company in advance. 

For: Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

 

Milan Bhatia 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mem No.: A34850 

 

Place: Kolkata  

Date: 26.08.2025 
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Annexure – Information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Secretarial 

Standard on General Meetings:  

Particulars 

Mr. Deepak 

Kandoi 

(Managing 

Director) 

Mr. Mahendra Singh 

(Whole-time Director) 

Mr. Pranay 

Tandon 

(Independent 

Director) 

Mr. Rajat Sharma 

(Independent 

Director) 

Ms. Nimisha 

Srivastav 

(Independent 

Director) 

DIN 11074878 07692374 11068992 11243035 11243047 

Date of Birth / Age 
23.10.1999 

(25 years) 
23.03.1969 (56 years) 

23.01.2001(24 

years) 

13.01.1987 (38 

years) 

10.06.1999 (26 

years) 

Qualification 
Chartered 

Accountant 
M. Sc  

Chartered 

Accountant 
Company Secretary LLB 

Reason for 

Appointment 

Considering 

his 

professional 

qualifications 

as a Chartered 

Accountant, 

rich 

experience in 

finance, 

corporate 

strategy and 

management, 

and his ability 

to provide 

effective 

leadership, the 

Board 

recommends 

his 

appointment 

as Managing 

Director of the 

Company 

To enable smooth 

transition in leadership 

and to continue to 

benefit from his 

experience and 

guidance, Mr. 

Mahendra Singh is 

proposed to be re-

designated as a Whole-

time Director of the 

Company 

In view of his 

expertise in 

corporate strategy, 

governance and 

business 

development, and to 

strengthen the Board 

with independent 

judgment, the Board 

recommends his 

appointment as an 

Independent 

Director of the 

Company. 

In view of his 

expertise in 

corporate strategy, 

governance and 

business 

development, and to 

strengthen the Board 

with independent 

judgment, the Board 

recommends his 

appointment as an 

Independent 

Director of the 

Company 

In view of her 

expertise in 

corporate strategy, 

governance and 

business 

development, and to 

strengthen the Board 

with independent 

judgment, the Board 

recommends her 

appointment as an 

Independent Director 

of the Company 

Date of 

appointment / last 

reappointment at 

the Annual 

General Meeting 

25.09.2025 25.09.2025 25.09.2025 

 

 

25.09.2025 

 

 

25.09.2025 

Date of first 

appointment on 

Board 

NIL 
18.06.2024 & 

30.09.2024 
NIL NIL NIL 

Terms and 

Conditions of 

Appointment 

Given in the 

explanatory 

statement 

Given in the 

explanatory statement  

 

Given in the 

explanatory 

statement 

 

Given in the 

explanatory 

statement 

 

Given in the 

explanatory 

statement 

Nature of 

Expertise in 

Specific Functional 

Areas 

Mr. Deepak 

Kandoi is a 

qualified 

Chartered 

Accountant 

with rich 

experience in 

finance, 

taxation, 

accounts, 

Mr. Mahendra Singh 

possesses rich 

managerial and 

leadership experience 

with expertise in 

business development, 

operations 

management, and 

strategic planning. He 

has been instrumental 

Mr. Pranay Tandon 

has expertise in 

corporate strategy, 

governance, 

business 

development, and 

management 

advisory functions 

with rich experience 

Mr. Rajat Sharma is 

a qualified Company 

Secretary with 

expertise in 

corporate laws, 

securities laws, 

corporate 

governance, and 

compliance 

management. He 

Ms. Nimisha 

Srivastava is a law 

graduate with 

expertise in 

corporate and 

commercial laws, 

legal advisory, and 

governance 

matters. She has 

experience in 
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corporate 

restructuring, 

and strategic 

planning. He 

has expertise 

in financial 

management, 

regulatory 

compliance, 

risk 

management, 

and business 

advisory 

services, and 

brings strong 

leadership and 

analytical 

skills to the 

Board 

in guiding the 

Company in areas of 

corporate governance, 

financial discipline, 

and long-term growth 

initiatives, with deep 

understanding of the 

agri-

trading/packaging/other 

relevant sector. 

across diverse 

sectors. 

has extensive 

experience in 

handling regulatory 

filings, secretarial 

compliances, board 

administration, and 

stakeholder 

management, and 

has been actively 

involved in ensuring 

adherence to 

statutory and 

regulatory 

frameworks 

applicable to listed 

companies. 

drafting, reviewing, 

and negotiating legal 

documents, ensuring 

compliance with 

statutory and 

regulatory 

requirements, and 

advising on 

corporate governance 

practices and risk 

management. 

The Remuneration 

last drawn by 

Directors, if 

applicable  

NIL Rs.1,20,000/-p.a. NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

Details of 

Remuneration 

sought to be paid  

Rs.12,00,000/- 

p.a. and other 

details given 

in explanatory 

statement 

Rs.12,00,000/- p.a. and 

other 

details given in 

explanatory statement 

Remuneration: 

• Entitled to 

receive sitting fees 

for attending 

meetings of the 

Board/Committees 

thereof, as may be 

decided by the 

Board within the 

limits prescribed 

under the 

Companies Act, 

2013. 

• Reimbursement of 

expenses incurred 

for attending 

meetings of the 

Board/Committees  

Remuneration: 

• Entitled to 

receive sitting fees 

for attending 

meetings of the 

Board/Committees 

thereof, as may be 

decided by the 

Board within the 

limits prescribed 

under the 

Companies Act, 

2013. 

• Reimbursement of 

expenses incurred 

for attending 

meetings of the 

Board/Committees  

Remuneration: 

• Entitled to 

receive sitting fees 

for attending 

meetings of the 

Board/Committees 

thereof, as may be 

decided by the 

Board within the 

limits prescribed 

under the 

Companies Act, 

2013. 

• Reimbursement of 

expenses incurred 

for attending 

meetings of the 

Board/Committees  
List of Other 

Public Companies 

in which 

Directorship held 

(excluding in 

Foreign 

Companies) 

NIL 

 

 

NIL  

 

 

NIL 

 

 

NIL 

 

 

NIL 

List of other listed 

entities in which 

Directorship held 

NIL 

 

NIL  

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

Chairman / 

Member of the 

Committees of the 

Board of Directors 

of Other 

Companies in 

which he is a 

Director (excluding 

NIL NIL 

 

 

 

NIL 

 

 

 

NIL 

 

 

 

NIL 
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in Foreign 

Companies) 

Chairman/ 

Member of the 

Committees of the 

Co. 

NIL NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

Disclosure of 

relationship 

between Directors 

interse and Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Not related to 

any 

Director/KMP 

Not related to any 

Director/KMP 

 

 

Not related to any 

Director/KMP 

 

 

Not related to any 

Director/KMP 

 

 

Not related to any 

Director/KMP 

Details of 

Shareholding, if 

any in the 

Company 

NIL NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

The number of 

Meetings of the 

Board attended 

during the 

financial year 

NIL 7 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 
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Board’s Report 

To 

The Members of 

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 58th Annual Report of your Company together with the 

Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report of your company for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2025. 

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW: 

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, your Company delivered another year of steady and 

resilient performance. The Gross Income stood at Rs.41.41 crores as compared to Rs.37.34 crores in 

the previous year, reflecting a healthy year-on-year growth of 10.9%. This progress has been driven by 

a combination of higher operational scale, disciplined cost management, and a sharper focus on strategic 

market positioning. 

The Company’s profitability also showed marked improvement. Profit Before Tax (PBT) rose to 

Rs.0.55 Crores in FY 2024–25 against Rs.0.48 Crores in FY 2023–24, an increase of 14.58%. Profit 

After Tax (PAT) stood at Rs.0.449 Crores as compared to Rs.0.34 crores in the previous year, 

registering a strong growth of 44.00%. 

In line with its long-term strategy, the Company has chosen to retain the entire earnings to further 

strengthen the balance sheet and fund future expansion initiatives. Consequently, no dividend has been 

declared for the year under review. 

The balance sheet continues to reflect robust growth. Total Assets increased from Rs.16.76 crores in 

FY 2023–24 to Rs.22.32 crores in FY 2024–25, demonstrating enhanced financial stability. The Net 

Worth also improved to Rs.8.22 crores as on 31st March 2025, as against Rs.7.70 crores in the preceding 

year. 

Going forward, the Management remains committed to sustainable value creation by enhancing 

operational efficiencies, pursuing prudent financial policies, and making strategic decisions that are in 

the best interest of all stakeholders. 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

 

The financial Particulars 
FY 2024-25 (Rs. 

Crores) 

FY 2023-24 (Rs. 

Crores) 

Gross Income 41.41 37.34 

Profit before Interest and Depreciation 1.64 1.29 

Finance Charges 0.74 0.54 

Profit before Depreciation 0.90 0.75 

Provision for Depreciation 0.34 0.27 
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The financial Particulars 
FY 2024-25 (Rs. 

Crores) 

FY 2023-24 (Rs. 

Crores) 

Profit before extraordinary item and tax 0.56 0.47 

Add: Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00 

Profit before Tax (PBT) 0.56 0.47 

Taxes:   

- Current Tax 0.14 0.11 

- Deferred Tax (Liability/Asset Reversed) -0.07 0.01 

- Tax in respect of earlier year 0.00 0.00 

Profit After Tax (PAT) 0.49 0.34 

3. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

During the year under review, the Company delivered a satisfactory performance in terms of revenue 

and profitability. The total revenue stood at Rs.41.41 crores, registering a growth of 10.91% over the 

previous year’s turnover of Rs.37.34 crores. 

After accounting for administrative and other operating expenses, the Company reported a net profit of 

Rs.0.49 crores, as against Rs.0.34 crores in the previous financial year — reflecting an encouraging 

increase of 44%. 

The Board remains committed to enhancing operational efficiency and has already initiated several 

strategic measures aimed at strengthening performance. With these efforts, the Company is confident 

of achieving improved results in the years to come. 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (J) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013: 

The company has not transferred amounts in the Reserves in terms of Section 134(3)(J) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Your Company has a net worth of Rs.8.22 crore. 

5. DIVIDEND: 

The Board of Directors of the Company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances has 

not recommended any dividend for the current financial year with a view to conserve the profits 

generated.  

6.  SECURED LOANS: 

 

The outstanding secured loan from the bank stood at Rs. 7.74 Crores as at 31st March 2025, as 

compared to Rs. 2.01 Crores in the previous year. 

7. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
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During the period under review, the Company has not changed its line of business in such a way that 

amounts to commencement of any new business or discontinuance, sale or disposal of any of its existing 

businesses or hiving off any segment or division. 

8. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates on the date of this report. 

9. SHARE CAPITAL: 

There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the financial year under review. 

As on March 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs.5,00,00,000/- 

(Rupees Five Crores only), divided into 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital stood at Rs.4,79,94,000/- (Rupees Four Crores 

Seventy-Nine Lakhs Ninety-Four Thousand only), comprising 47,99,400 (Forty-Seven Lakhs Ninety-

Nine Thousand Four Hundred) equity shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid-up. 

Further, during the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting 

rights, stock options, or sweat equity shares. 

10. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 

PROTECTION FUND: 

There was no requirement during the year relating to unclaimed/unpaid dividend, application money, 

debenture interest and interest on deposits as well as the principal amount of debentures and deposits, 

remaining unclaimed/ unpaid in relation to the Company hence the Company is not required to transfer 

any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES: 

Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part 

of the notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report. 

12. INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY: 

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate 

Company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the disclosure in Form AOC-1 is not 

applicable. 

13. DEPOSITS: 

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public falling under the ambit of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with ‘Chapter V- Acceptance of Deposits by Companies, during 

the year under review.  
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14. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

Your Company has historically adhered to the highest standards of ethics, transparency, and 

accountability in all its operations. In line with this philosophy, the Company has adopted a Policy on 

Related Party Transactions, which is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The said policy is 

available on the Company’s website at the following link: 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transaction.pdf 

During the financial year under review, the Company did not enter into any contracts or 

arrangements with related parties falling within the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013. Accordingly, the requirement of furnishing particulars in Form AOC-2 is not applicable, and 

hence the same has not been annexed to this Report. 

15. ACCOUNTING METHOD: 

The Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company are complied with Section 129 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 

(“Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR) Regulations/SEBI 

Listing Regulations”). The Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial results 

of its subsidiary companies and joint ventures. 

The Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company are prepared on a going-concern basis. 

There are no material departures from the prescribed norms stipulated by the accounting standards in 

preparation of the annual accounts. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a 

newly issued accounting standard, if initially adopted, or a revision to an existing accounting standard 

required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The management evaluates accounting 

standards including any revision thereon on ongoing basis. 

16. MATERIAL EVENT DURING THE YEAR: 

CHANGE IN PROMOTERS / CONTROL OF THE COMPANY 

During the year under review, a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) was executed on March 13, 2024, 

between the existing promoter, Revati Holdings Private Limited, and the Acquirers, namely M/s 

Genesis Trade Links Private Limited, Mr. Vikash Singh, and Mrs. Nitu Singh (collectively referred 

to as “Acquirers”), pursuant to which the Acquirers agreed to acquire 15,95,693 equity shares, 

representing 33.00% of the voting share capital of the Company, at a negotiated price of Rs.25.00 per 

share, aggregating to a total consideration of Rs.3,98,92,325.00. 

This transaction has triggered the provisions of Regulations 3(1) and 4 of the SEBI (Substantial 

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, including subsequent amendments (“SEBI 

SAST Regulations”). Accordingly, the Acquirers made an Open Offer to the public shareholders of the 

Company to acquire up to 12,47,844 equity shares, representing 26.00% of the voting share capital of 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transaction.pdf
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the Company, at an offer price of Rs.28.50 per share, aggregating to a total consideration of 

Rs.3,55,63,554.00, payable in cash, in accordance with the pricing norms laid down under Regulations 

8(1) and 8(2) of the SEBI SAST Regulations. 

Swaraj Shares and Securities Private Limited was appointed as the Manager to the Offer under 

Regulation 12(1) of the SEBI SAST Regulations. Upon completion of the acquisition and the Open 

Offer formalities, there has been a change in control and management of the Company. The Acquirers 

have become the new promoters of the Company, and Revati Holdings Private Limited has ceased to 

be part of the promoter group. 

17. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

There has been Change in the constitution of Board during the year.  

Composition of board of directors as on 31/03/2025 is as following: 

Name Din Present Designation 
Present Designation 

Appointment Date 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das 02604632 Director 27 Sep, 2019 

Mr. Mahendra Singh 07692374 Managing Director 18 Jun, 2024 

Mr. Bidhan Chandra Roy - CFO 1 Aug, 2018 

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal 10196518 Director 30 Sep, 2023 

Mrs. Shalini Srivastava 10951727 Additional Director 3 Mar, 2025 

 

Pursuant to provisions Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are:  

S. No. Name Designation 

1 Mr. Mahendra Singh Managing Director 

2 Mr. Bidhan Chandra Roy Chief Financial Officer 

3 *Mrs. Archana Singh Company Secretary 

*Notes: Mrs. Archana Singh, Company Secretary resign on 11.04.2025 whereas Mrs. Milan Bhatia 

appointed on 01.07.2025 as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mrs. Mousami Sengupta appointed as Director 18.06.2024 resigns from Board on 06.03.2025. 

Remuneration Policy: The Company’s remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding 

performance, based on review of achievements. The remuneration policy is in consonance with existing 

industry practice. The Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at: 
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https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf 

18. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

a. The Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms that all the Independent Directors duly 

appointed by the Company have given the declaration and they meet the criteria of independence as 

provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

Your Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of your Company 

confirming that: 

i) they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015; 

ii) In accordance with Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors 

have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations that could reasonably be 

expected to impair their ability to perform their duties with objective independence and without any 

external influence. 

iii) The Board of Directors has reviewed and taken on record these declarations and confirmations after 

conducting a thorough assessment of their authenticity. 

iv) The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors uphold the highest standards of integrity 

and possess the necessary expertise and experience to effectively fulfill their roles and responsibilities 

as Independent Directors. 

v) The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code 

of Conduct for Board and Senior Management as per Regulation 26(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations 

vi) In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the Company have 

confirmed that they have registered themselves with the databank maintained by the Indian Institute of 

Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”). 

b. Statement Regarding Board Opinion with Integrity, Expertise and Experience (Including 

Proficiency) of the Independent Director: 

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status 

as Independent Directors of the Company and that the Independent Directors appointed possess 

requisite qualifications, experience and expertise in Corporate Governance, Legal & Compliance, 

Financial Literacy, General Management, Industry Knowledge, Technology, Risk Management, 

Strategic Expertise and Sustainability and they hold highest standards of integrity and therefore the 

Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience (including proficiency in terms of Section 

150(1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder) of all Independent Directors on the Board. 

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of 

conduct. 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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c. Separate Meetings of Independent Directors 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Regulation 25(3) and (4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, and applicable Secretarial Standards, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the 

Company was held on March 26, 2025. The meeting was conducted without the presence of Non-

Independent Directors and members of the Management, as mandated. 

All Independent Directors were present at the meeting. The purpose of this exclusive meeting was to 

provide a platform for Independent Directors to, inter-alia, discuss and evaluate: 

The performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

The performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors; 

The quality, quantity, and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s Management 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

In addition to the above agenda items, the Independent Directors deliberated on the overall governance 

framework, strategic direction, operational performance, compliance environment, and risk 

management practices of the Company. They also discussed matters arising out of Board and 

Committee meetings, including the effectiveness of internal controls and adequacy of Board 

disclosures. 

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with the functioning of the Board, the performance 

of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and the timely availability and adequacy of information 

shared by the Management.  

Further, during the year under review, the Independent Directors had access to senior management, 

Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor for discussions on matters of relevance. These interactions, 

both formal and informal, including those with the Chairman, ensured that the Independent Directors 

remained well-informed and engaged in the governance of the Company. 

The meeting reaffirmed the Company’s commitment to maintaining high standards of corporate 

governance and enabling Independent Directors to discharge their responsibilities effectively. 

d. Following is the Independent Directors on the Board of Company: 

S. No. Name Designation 

1 Mr. Naba Kumar Das Independent Director 

2 Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal Independent Director 

3 Mrs. Shalini Srivastava Independent Director 

 

All the above Independent Directors meet the criteria of ‘independence’ prescribed under section 149(6) 

and have submitted their declarations to that effect. 

 

19. NUMBER OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
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During the Financial Year 24-25, the Company held 7 (Seven) board meetings of the Board of Directors 

as per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized below. The provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 were adhered to while considering the time gap between the two meetings. 

S. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength 
No. of Directors 

Present 

1  29.05.2024 3 3 

2  18.06.2024 4 4 

3  12.08.2024 4 4 

4  14.11.2024 4 4 

5  30.01.2025 4 4 

6  10.02.2025 4 4 

7 03.03.2025 5 5 

 

Director’s attendance of Board meeting for the financial year 24-25 is tabled below: 

Dates 

Mr. Mahendra 

Singh 

Mr. Naba 

Kumar Das 

Mr. Sundeep 

Kumar Tayal 

Mrs. 

Mousami 

Sengupta 

Mrs. Shalini 

Srivastava 

29.05.2024 Present Present Present - - 

18.06.2024 Present Present Present Present - 

12.08.2024 Present Present Present Present - 

14.11.2024 Present Present Present Present - 

30.01.2025 Present Present Present Present - 

10.02.2025 Present Present Present Present - 

03.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Present 

 

20. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

I. Composition of Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee of the Company has been duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Audit Committee functions in line with the roles, responsibilities, and powers defined under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. Its duties include, but are not limited to, 

overseeing financial reporting, monitoring internal control systems, reviewing audit reports, and 
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ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In addition to its statutory responsibilities, 

the Committee also undertakes such other functions and assignments as may be specifically delegated 

to it by the Board of Directors from time to time: 

II. Role/ Functions of the Committee: 

-Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board.  

-Recommending the appointment and removal of auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval for 

payment for any other services. 

-Review of policies relating to risk management - operational and financial. 

-Reviewing with the management, auditors and the adequacy of the internal control system. 

 

III. Powers of the Committee: 

-To investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 

-To secure attendance of and seek any information from any employee including representative of the 

prime shareholders (subject to their internal approvals). 

-Compliance with accounting standards. 

-To obtain outside legal or other professional advice, if necessary. 

-To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 

IV. The composition of the Audit Committee is given below: 

Name of the Director  Position held in the Committee  Category of the Director  

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das Member Independent Director 

Mr. Mahendra Singh Member  Managing Director 

V. During the Financial year 2024-25 company held 4 (Four) Meetings of the Audit Committee, 

details of which are summarized below: 

DATES 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director  

Naba Kumar Das 

Independent Director 

Sundeep Kumar Tayal 

Independent Director 

29.05.2024 Present Present Present 

12.08.2024 Present Present Present 

14.11.2024 Present Present Present 

10.02.2025 Present Present Present 
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The Company has laid down a policy on Audit Committee, which has been uploaded on the Company 

website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under:  

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Audit-Committee-Policy.pdf 

21. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

I. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has been constituted in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Committee is responsible for formulating and recommending to the Board the policies relating to 

the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Management. It also reviews and recommends the 

remuneration payable to them, ensuring that it is aligned with their performance, qualifications, 

experience, and the defined evaluation criteria. 

The Committee further ensures that the Company's remuneration practices are fair, transparent, and in 

line with industry standards. 

II. The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

-Recommend to the board the set up and composition of the board and its committees, Including the 

“formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director”. The committee will consider periodically reviewing the composition of the board with the 

objective of achieving an optimum balance of size, skills, independence, knowledge, age, gender and 

experience. 

- Recommend to the board the appointment or reappointment of directors. 

- Devise a policy on board diversity. 

- On an annual basis, recommend to the board the remuneration payable to the directors and oversee 

the remuneration to executive team or key managerial personnel of the Company. 

- Provide guidelines for remuneration of directors on material subsidiaries. 

III. The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is given below:  

Name of the Director  Position held in the Committee  Category of the Director  

Mr. Naba Kumar Das Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal Member Independent Director 

Ms. Mousami Sengupta Member 
Non-Executive 

Professional Director 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Audit-Committee-Policy.pdf
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IV. During the Financial year 2024-25 company held 2 (Two) Meetings of the Committee, details 

of which are summarized below: 

DATES 

Mousami Sengupta Non-

Executive Professional 

Director 

Naba Kumar Das 

Independent Director 

Sundeep Kumar Tayal 

Independent Director 

18.06.2024 Present Present Present 

03.03.2025 Present Present Present 

 

The Company has laid down a policy on Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which has been 

uploaded on the Company website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under:  

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf. 

22. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

I. Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee in order 

to align it with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee has been 

constituted to strengthen the investor relations and to inter-alia, look into issues relating to shareholders 

grievances pertaining to transfer of shares, non- receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of Annual 

Report, issues concerning de-materialization etc. 

II. The broad terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as under: 

-To approve/refuse/reject registration of transfer/transmission of Shares in a timely manner; 

- To issue the Share Certificates under the seal of the Company, this shall be affixed in the presence of, 

and signed by: 

(i) Any two Directors (including Managing or Whole-time Director, if any), and 

(ii) Company Secretary / Authorised Signatory; 

-To authorize affixation of the Common Seal of the Company on Share Certificates of the Company; 

-To authorize to sign and endorse the Share Transfers on behalf of the Company; 

-To authorized Managers/Officers/Signatories for signing Share Certificates; 

III. The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is given below:  

Name of the Director  
Position held in the 

Committee  
Category of the Director  

Ms. Mousami Sengupta Chairman 
Non-Executive Professional 

Director 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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Mr. Mahendra Singh Member Managing Director 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das Member Independent Director 

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal Member Independent Director 

 

 

IV. During the Financial year 2024-25 company held 1 (One) Meetings of the Committee, details 

of which are summarized below: 

DATES 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 

Naba Kumar Das 

Independent 

Director 

Mousami Sengupta 

Non-Executive 

Professional 

Director 

Sundeep Kumar 

Tayal 

Independent 

Director 

29.05.2024 Present Present Present Present 

 

The Company has laid down a policy on Stakeholders Relationship Committee, which has been 

uploaded on the Company website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under:  

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Stakeholder-Relationship-Committee-Policy.pdf 

 

23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement 

containing the following disclosures is provided below: 

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees: 

Name of Director Designation Ratio of remuneration to median 

employee remuneration 

Mr. Mahendra Singh Managing Director  1: 7.18 The ratio of the remuneration of 

the Managing Director to the median 

remuneration of the employees of the 

Company  

Mrs. Shalini Srivastava Independent Director N.A. 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das Independent Director N.A. 

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal Independent Director N.A. 

Ms. Mousami Sengupta Non-Executive Professional 

Director 

N.A. 

 

B. Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO, CEO, CS in the financial year: 

Name Designation % increase over last year 

Mr. Mahendra Singh Managing Director No increase over last year 

Mr. Bidhan Chandra Roy Chief Financial Officer (CFO) No increase over last year 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Stakeholder-Relationship-Committee-Policy.pdf
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Mrs. Archana Singh Company Secretary (CS) No increase over last year 

Mrs. Shalini Srivastava Independent Director No increase over last year 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das Independent Director No increase over last year 

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal Independent Director No increase over last year 

Ms. Mousami Sengupta Non-Executive Professional 

Director 

N.A. 

 

C. Median remuneration and employee count: 

• Median remuneration of employees during the financial year: Rs.1,20,000/- p.a. 

• Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 4 

• Average percentage increase in salaries of employees (excluding managerial personnel): N.A. 

• Comparison of remuneration of KMPs with company performance: no increase during the year 

D. Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn: 

During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits 

specified under Rule 5(2). 

 

24. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 the performance evaluation of the Board was carried out 

during the year under review. The Company has prepared an annual performance evaluation policy for 

performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board and the Committees. 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the 

Chairperson of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and 

contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority 

shareholders etc. 

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The 

performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the 

Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. 

 

25. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 

34 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange in India, is included in a separate 

section annexed to and forming part of the Directors report. Annexure-B. 

26. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 

 

The Company has robust Internal Control Systems and processes in place for smooth and efficient 

conduct of business and it complies with relevant laws and regulations. It has well documented system 
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of internal financial controls in place, in the form of delegation of powers, policies and procedures, 

manuals, guidelines that giver critical as well as important activities of financial and other operating 

functions. These are designed to ensure compliance to the internal financial controls and to ensure 

regulatory and statutory compliances as well as to provide highest level of corporate governance. 

Company has robust systems and processes in place for smooth, effective and efficient conduct of 

business operations, reliability of financial reporting, safeguarding of assets and compliance with 

relevant laws and regulations. 

In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place and all internal control systems are in order, 

regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted by the experienced firms of Chartered Accountants 

in close co-ordination with the Company's own Senior Officials Besides, the Company has one 

committee of the Board viz. Audit Committee to keep a close watch on compliances with Internal 

Control Systems and their adequacy. 

Your Company has an efficient system of internal controls for achieving the following business 

objectives: - 

➢ Efficiency and effectiveness of business operations; 

➢ Safeguarding of assets from unauthorized access, use and disposition; 

➢ Accuracy and promptness of financial reporting 

➢ Compliance with the laid down policies and procedures; and 

➢ Compliance with various laws and regulations. 

 

27. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:  

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company confirms 

that- 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period; 

(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

(f) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

28. FRAUD REPORTING: 
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There were no frauds reported by the auditor during the year under sub-section (12) of section 143 other 

than those which are reportable to the Central Government. 

29. ANNUAL RETURN: 

In compliance to provisions of section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 copy of the Annual 

Return referred to in sub section (3) of Section 92 of the Act as prepared in Form No. MGT 7 is placed 

on the website of the company, weblink of the same is  

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/investor-relations/ 

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR): 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 

thereunder, the threshold criteria prescribed for the applicability of Corporate Social Responsibility are 

not met by the Company during the financial year under review. Accordingly, the Company is not 

required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee or undertake any CSR activities. 

Consequently, the disclosure requirements specified under Section 134(3)(o) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company for the 

financial year under review. 

31. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

(A) Conservation of energy: 

Steps taken / impact on conservation of energy, with special reference to the following: 

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Not Applicable. 

(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy including waste generated: Not 

Applicable. 

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil 

(B) Technology absorption: 

(i) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption: Nil 

(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g., product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development, import substitution, etc.: Nil 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of 

the financial year), following information may be furnished: Nil 

(a) Details of technology imported: N.A.  

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/investor-relations/
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(b) Year of import: N.A.  

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed: N.A.  

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons therefore: 

N.A.  

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: N.A.  

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 

Earnings Nil 

Outgo Nil 

32. BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has a Business Risk Management framework designed to identify and mitigate risk that 

has the potential to materially impact its business objectives and maintains a balance between managing 

risk and exploiting the opportunities. The approach of Risk Management is defined across the Company 

at various levels, including documentation and reporting, interspersed with diverse risk models to help 

identify risk trends, exposure and potential impact analysis at the corporate level. 

The Management evaluated various risks and that there is no element of risk identified that may threaten 

the existence of the Company.  

The Company has not identified any element of risk which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the 

existence of the Company. However, a risk management framework is in place to ensure timely 

identification, analysis, and mitigation of internal and external risks. 

33. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS: 

There is no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going 

concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

34. AUDITORS: 

♦ Statutory Auditors & their Report 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s Amit Ray & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 

000483C), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) held on 30.09.2023 to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years, until the conclusion 

of the 61st AGM of the Company. 
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The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. They have also subjected themselves to the 

Peer Review process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid 

certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI. 

The Board notes that the Auditors’ Report on the standalone financial statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2025, does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse 

remarks, or disclaimers. The observations, if any, made by the Auditors in their report, read together 

with the notes to the accounts, are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments 

under Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

♦ Cost Auditor 

The Cost Audit pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records 

and Audit) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the company. 

♦ Secretarial Auditor 

According to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 

M/s. Mukesh Chaturvedi, Company Secretary Kolkata, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for the financial year ended 2025. 

The Secretarial Audit Report Submitted by M/s. Mukesh Chaturvedi, Company Secretary, Kolkata, 

for the financial year ended 2025 in the prescribed form MR-3 is annexed to the report as Annexure-

A. 

The said secretarial audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or 

disclaimer made by the Secretarial Auditor. 

In accordance with the recent amendments to the Listing Regulations, the Board has recommended to 

the members for their approval, appointment of M/s. Mukesh Chaturvedi, Company Secretary, 

Practising Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for the financial year 2025-

26. 

♦ Internal Auditor 

As per provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board with the recommendation of 

the audit committee has appointed M/s. Bharadwaj & Co. (FRN: 326709E), Kolkata to undertake 

Internal Audit of the Company. The Internal Audit Report does not contain any qualification, 

reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

35. DETAILS OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED 

UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC): 

No corporate insolvency resolution process is initiated against your Company under Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 
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36. DEPOSITORY SYSTEM:  

The Equity Shares of the Company are available for dematerialisation with National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Securities Limited (CDSL) under ISIN 

INE578R01011.  

43,77,731 shares (i.e. 91.21%) of Equity Shares of the Company are in Demat form as on 31.03.2025. 

37. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT: 

Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 

Regulations, 2018, quarterly audit of the Company’s share capital is being carried out by a Practicing 

Company Secretary to reconcile the total share capital admitted with NSDL and CDSL and held in 

physical form, with the issued and listed capital of the Company. The Practicing Company Secretary’s 

Certificate in regard to the same is submitted to Stock Exchanges and is also placed before the Board 

of Directors. 

38. DETAILS OF FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION: 

During the year the Company has not failed to execute any corporate action. 

39. STATEMENT REGARDING COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL 

STANDARDS: 

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

40. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has in place an anti-sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of the sexual 

harassment of women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Further the company was committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment to its 

employees during the year under review. Your Directors further state that during the year under review, 

there were no cases filed pursuant to the sexual harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 

Summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the financial year: - 

No. of complaints received: 0 

No. of complaints disposed of: 0 

No. of complaints pending: 0 
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No. of complaints unsolved: 0 

The policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment is available on the website of the Company at the 

weblink 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Policy%20on%20Prevention%20of%20Sexual%20Harassm

ent%20at%20workplace.pdf 

41. DISCLOSURE OF POLICIES UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND SEBI LISTING 

REGULATIONS: 

In accordance with the requirements laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Board 

of Directors of the Company has adopted and implemented various policies to ensure transparency, 

accountability, and good corporate governance practices across all levels of the organization. 

These policies govern critical areas such as risk management, related party transactions, insider trading, 

whistle blower mechanism, code of conduct, and other statutory and regulatory requirements applicable 

to listed companies. 

To promote ease of access and enhance stakeholder awareness all such policies as approved by the 

Board of Directors are made available on the Company’s official website. Stakeholders and Members 

of the Company can view and download these policies through the following link: 

www.bangalorefortfarms.com. 

The Company is committed to periodically reviewing and updating these policies to ensure ongoing 

compliance with applicable laws and to reflect emerging best practices in corporate governance. These 

efforts reinforce Company’s dedication to responsible and ethical business conduct while fostering 

stakeholder confidence. 

42. CERTIFICATE FOR NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR: 

In accordance with Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C, Clause 10 (i) of the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, the Company had sought a certificate from the M/s. Rahul Srivastava & Co, Practicing 

Company Secretaries, Address: 23 N.S. Road, Fortuna Tower, 11th Floor, Kolkata 700001, 

confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified  

from being appointed and/or continuing as Directors by the SEBI/MCA or any other such statutory 

authority. 

The Certificate on Non-Disqualification of Directors to is published in the Annual Report and marked 

as Annexure-C. 

43. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

The Company has formulated a vigil mechanism (whistle blower policy) for its directors and employees 

of the Company for reporting genuine concerns about unethical practices and suspected or actual fraud 

or violation of the code of conduct of the Company as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. This 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Policy%20on%20Prevention%20of%20Sexual%20Harassment%20at%20workplace.pdf
https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Policy%20on%20Prevention%20of%20Sexual%20Harassment%20at%20workplace.pdf
http://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/
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vigil mechanism shall provide a channel to the employees and Directors to report to the management 

concerns about unethical behaviour, and also provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of 

persons who use the mechanism and also make provision for direct access to the chairperson of the 

Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. 

Your Company has in place a whistle blower policy and the same is uploaded on the website of the 

Company and the web-link 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf 

All the Board of Member as well as senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the 

Code of Conduct for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025. 

Code of Conduct Declaration by Managing Director 

The Managing Director of the Company has confirmed that all the members of the Board of Directors 

and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of 

Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.  

 

44. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:  

 

The Company has adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in 

accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, to regulate, monitor, and 

report trading in the Company’s securities by its Directors and designated employees. 

 

The Code mandates pre-clearance of trades in the Company’s shares and prohibits trading by 

Directors and designated persons while in possession of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

(UPSI) or during periods when the Trading Window is closed. 

 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the Code and ensuring 

compliance. All Directors and designated employees have confirmed adherence to the provisions of 

the Code during the financial year under review. 

Your Company has in place a Code of Conduct applicable to the Board of Member as well as senior 

management personnel and the same is uploaded on the website of the Company and the web-link 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/CODE_OF_CONDUCT.pdf 

 

 

45. GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL MECHANISM AND ONLINE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

(ODR) FRAMEWORK: 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 31st July, 2023, and subsequent circular dated 20th December, 2023, 

read with the Master Circular dated 11th August, 2023, shareholders are advised to first take up 

theirgrievances directly with the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) by 

lodging a complaint with the concerned entity. 

https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
https://www.bangalorefortfarms.com/pdf/CODE_OF_CONDUCT.pdf
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If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved, shareholders may escalate the same through the SCORES 

Portal (SEBI Complaints Redress System), in accordance with the process laid down under the 

SCORES guidelines. 

Only upon exhausting all available avenues for redressal, and if the shareholder remains dissatisfied 

with the resolution, they may initiate dispute resolution through the Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) 

Portal as prescribed by SEBI. 

Shareholders of Bangalore Fort Farms Limited are requested to kindly take note of this process and 

ensure compliance with the same while raising any investor grievance 

 

46. WEBSITE: 

 

The Company has a functional website addressed as www.bangalorefortfarms.com. Website contains 

all basic information about the Company - details of its Business, Financial Information, Shareholding 

Pattern, Contact Information of the Designated Official of the Company who is responsible for assisting 

and handling investors grievances and such other details as may be required under sub regulation (2) of 

Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. The Company ensures that the contents of this website 

are periodically updated. 

 

47. OTHER GENRAL DISCLOSURES: 

 

Your director’s state the during the financial year under review: 

a) Disclosure under section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013: The Company has not issued equity 

shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;  

b) Disclosure under section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013: The Company has not issued any 

sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 

54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 

is furnished.;  

c) Disclosure under section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013: During the year under review, there 

were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by 

employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies 

(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished.  

d) Disclosure of reason for difference between valuation done at the time of taking loan from bank and 

at the time of one-time settlement: There was no instance of a one-time settlement with any Bank or 

Financial Institution. 

e) The Company has registered itself on Trade Receivables Discounting System platform (TReDS) 

through the service providers Receivables Exchange of India Limited. The Company complies with the 

requirement of submitting a half yearly return to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the prescribed 

timelines. 

f) There is no Raising of funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement; 

g) Compliances of Secretarial Standards: The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued 

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General 

Meetings; 
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h) Technology and Quality: Your Company is committed to deliver highest quality of products by 

continuous improvement in terms of product quality and achieving customer satisfaction and delight.  

 

i) The Company has not issued any debentures during the financial year 2024-2025. 

 

j) SEBI complaints redress system (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a centralized 

web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are a centralized database of 

all complaints, online upload of Action. 

 

48. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION REGULATION 17(8): 

 

The certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, signed by the Managing 

Director and CFO of the Company has been annexed as Annexure-D. 

 

49. OTHER REPORTS FORMING PART OF BOARD’S REPORT: 

 

The following reports forming part of the Board’s Report are enclosed:  

Secretarial Audit Report MR-3 as Annexure-A 

Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report as Annexure-B 

Certificate of Non-disqualification of Director as Annexure-C 

CEO/CFO Certification Regulation 17(8) as Annexure-D. 

 

50. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

As per regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulation, the Compliance with the Corporate Governance 

provisions shall not apply in respect of the following class of the Companies:  

a) Listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 10 Crore and Net worth not 

exceeding Rs. 25 Crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year;  

b) Listed entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange.  

Since, our Company falls in the ambit of aforesaid exemption (a); hence compliance with the provisions 

of Corporate Governance shall not apply to the Company and it does not form the part of the Annual 

Report for the financial year 2024-25. 

51. MSME COMPLIANCE: 

There were no trade payable pending during the period for more than 45 Days under review.  

52. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

The statements contained in the Board’s Report contain certain statements relating to the future and 

therefore are forward looking within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. 
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Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regime, other 

statues, market forces and other associated and incidental factors may however lead to variation in 

actual results. 

53. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

The Board of Directors places on record its sincere appreciation for the continued co-operation and 

support extended to the Company by the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and Calcutta Stock 

Exchange (CSE), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the Statutory Auditors, 

Internal Auditors, Legal Advisors, Consultants, and all other intermediary service providers and 

investors who have consistently supported the Company in its operations and governance. 

The Board also gratefully acknowledges the assistance and encouragement received from various 

Central, State, and Local Government authorities, Regulatory Bodies, Bankers, and Members of 

the Company, whose continued support has been instrumental in the Company’s sustained performance. 

The Directors take this opportunity to express their deep appreciation for the commitment, hard work, 

and 

dedication exhibited by all employees across levels, whose efforts have been pivotal in driving the 

Company’s growth and progress during the year under review. 

The Annual Report, including the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report, may contain certain statements that are forward-looking in nature, within the meaning of 

applicable securities laws and regulations. These statements represent the Company’s current 

expectations, intentions, or forecasts and are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future 

events. However, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-

looking statements. Various factors could impact the Company’s operations and performance, including 

but not limited to changes in market demand and supply conditions, regulatory and policy changes, 

foreign exchange rate fluctuations, and modifications in tax laws or government regulations. 

The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise or update any forward-looking statements, 

whether as a result of new information, future developments, or otherwise. 

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Mahendra Singh 

DIN: 07692374 

Managing Director  

 

Shalini Srivastava 

DIN: 10951727 

Director  

 

Date: 26.08.2025 

Place: Kolkata 
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ANNEXURE-A 

FORM NO. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 

The Members 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited  

164/1 Maniktala Main Road 

Mani Square Mall, Room no.7E 

Kolkata 7000054 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED (CIN: 

L51101WB1966PLC226442) (hereinafter called the “Company”).  Secretarial Audit was conducted in 

a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report 

that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st 

March, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained 

by the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder- Not 

applicable to the Company during the year under review. 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;  

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings (Not Applicable to the Company during the Year under review); 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;- (Not applicable to the Company during the year 

under review); 

 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) 

Regulations, 2014;- (Not applicable to the Company during the year under review)  

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008;-(Not applicable to the Company during the year under review); 

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client;- (Not applicable to the Company during the year under review). 

 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009;- (Not applicable to the Company during the year under review) 

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998;-(Not applicable to the Company during the year under review); and 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses / regulations of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India; and 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered by the Company with BSE Limited & Calcutta Stock 

Exchange Limited read with The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc 

mentioned above. 

 

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism 

formed by the Company for compliance under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the 

Company. I report that during the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the 

provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above.  

I further report that: - 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examination carried out by me 

and explanations furnished to me by the Company, its officers and agents, I report that in respect of the 

aforesaid period: 

During the year there was change in constitution of Board Mrs. Mousami Sengupta appointed as 

Director on 08.06.2024 resigned from Board on 06.03.2025. Further Mrs. Shalini Srivastava was 
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appointed as Independent Director on 03.03.2025. Apart from above, there was no change in the 

composition of the Board of Directors of the Company during the Audit period. 

Further Mrs. Archana Singh, Company Secretary resigned on 11.04.2025 whereas Mrs. Milan Bhatia 

was appointed on 01.07.2025 as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company. 

During the year under review, a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) was executed on March 13, 2024, 

between the existing promoter, Revati Holdings Private Limited, and the Acquirers, namely M/s 

Genesis Trade Links Private Limited, Mr. Vikash Singh, and Mrs. Nitu Singh (collectively referred to 

as “Acquirers”), pursuant to which the Acquirers agreed to acquire 15,95,693 equity shares, 

representing 33.00% of the voting share capital of the Company, at a negotiated price of Rs.25.00 per 

share, aggregating to a total consideration of Rs.3,98,92,325.00. 

This transaction has triggered the provisions of Regulations 3(1) and 4 of the SEBI (Substantial 

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, including subsequent amendments (“SEBI 

SAST Regulations”). Accordingly, the Acquirers made an Open Offer to the public shareholders of the 

Company to acquire up to 12,47,844 equity shares, representing 26.00% of the voting share capital of 

the Company, at an offer price of Rs.28.50 per share, aggregating to a total consideration of 

Rs.3,55,63,554.00, payable in cash, in accordance with the pricing norms laid down under Regulations 

8(1) and 8(2) of the SEBI SAST Regulations. 

Swaraj Shares and Securities Private Limited was appointed as the Manager to the Offer under 

Regulation 12(1) of the SEBI SAST Regulations. Upon completion of the acquisition and the Open 

Offer formalities, there has been a change in control and management of the Company. The Acquirers 

have become the new promoters of the Company, and Revati Holdings Private Limited has ceased to 

be part of the promoter group. 

I further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and 

indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of account have not been reviewed in 

this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated 

professionals. 

I further report that adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent in due time for meetings, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 

I was informed and I observed from the minutes of the Board Meetings that the decisions at the Board 

Meetings were taken with requisite majority / unanimously. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines etc. 

I further report that during the Financial Year under review, there were no other specific events 

actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc., having a  
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major bearing on the Company's affairs.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 18th August, 2025 

 Mukesh Chaturvedi 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No.: FCS-11063 

C.P. No.: 3390 

UDIN: F011063G001021688 

Peer review certificate No.:939/2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE-a’ and forms an 

integral part of this report. 



 

Page | 63  
 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 
Annual Report 2024-2025 

ANNEXURE-a 

To 

The Members 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited  

164/1 Maniktala Main Road 

Mani Square Mall, Room no.7E 

Kolkata 7000054 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test 

basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the process and 

practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 18th August, 2025 

 Mukesh Chaturvedi 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No.: FCS-11063 

C.P. No.: 3390 

UDIN: F011063G001021688 

Peer review certificate No.:939/2020 
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ANNEXURE-B 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS: 

The jute industry in India witnessed a robust performance during the FY 2024-25, supported by 

sustained demand in both domestic and global markets. The eco-friendly nature of jute, coupled with 

increasing environmental awareness, has fueled the demand for jute products globally. 

During the year under review, our company achieved significant growth in both income and profit after 

taxes, reflecting our strong position within the industry and our ability to capitalize on emerging 

opportunities. The global demand for jute continued to rise, driven by a shift towards sustainable 

packaging solutions and the versatility of jute in various applications. This favorable industry 

environment has enabled us to enhance our production capacities and optimize our operational 

efficiencies, further strengthening our market presence. 

Looking ahead, the jute industry is expected to maintain its growth trajectory, with ongoing government 

support for the sector and increasing consumer preference for sustainable products. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company is into Jute and Agro trading; however, the company did not enter into exports of Jute 

bags and accessories this fiscal year. However, due to high demand for jute and agro products 

worldwide, the company is of the view that there will be significant exports in the coming years. It has 

also spread hands in metal handicrafts etc along with raw jute and merchandise, import, export of metal 

handicrafts, merchandise etc. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Particulars FY 2024–25 FY 2023–24 

Gross Income 41.41 37.34 

Profit before Interest and Depreciation 1.64 1.29 

Finance Charges 0.74 0.54 

Depreciation 0.34 0.27 

Profit Before Tax 0.56 0.48 

Profit After Tax 0.49 0.34 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in Rs.) 1.02 0.72 

 

BUSINESS STRATEGY: 

 

To meet the rising global demand, we strategically increased our production capacity, ensuring timely 

delivery and maintaining the quality of our jute products. This expansion was complemented by 

investments in advanced technology to improve operational efficiency. 
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We focused on expanding our footprint in existing markets while exploring new geographical regions 

with untapped potential. Our efforts were directed towards establishing strong distribution networks 

and strategic partnerships to enhance our market reach. 

RISK AND CONCERNS: 

The availability and cost of raw jute are subject to seasonal variations and climatic conditions, which 

can lead to price volatility. Any significant increase in raw material costs may impact the profitability 

of jute manufacturers. 

The industry is heavily regulated, with government policies influencing both production and pricing. 

Any adverse changes in regulations, including export restrictions or increased environmental 

compliance costs, could pose challenges to the industry. 

With the rising global demand for sustainable materials, the jute industry faces competition from other 

natural fibers and synthetic alternatives. The industry must continuously innovate and improve to 

maintain its competitive edge. 

BUSINESS SEGMENT: 

The Company is presently into Single Business Segment. 

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS: 

Opportunities: 

❖ As environmental concerns continue to rise, there is a growing global shift towards sustainable and 

biodegradable materials. This trend presents a significant opportunity for the jute industry to expand 

its market share, especially in sectors like packaging, textiles, and home furnishings. 

❖ The Indian government’s continued support for the jute industry, including various subsidies and 

promotional schemes, provides a favorable environment for growth. Additionally, policies 

promoting the use of jute bags over plastic alternatives create new opportunities for the industry. 

❖ There is a growing demand for innovative jute products that go beyond traditional uses. By focusing 

on research and development, companies can tap into new market segments, such as fashion 

accessories, composites, and high-end consumer goods. 

❖ With increasing awareness about the environmental benefits of jute, there is potential to expand 

into new international markets. Penetrating untapped regions could lead to substantial growth in 

exports. 

 

The major threats are: 

❖ Despite the advantages of jute, it faces stiff competition from synthetic alternatives and other natural 

fibers that may offer lower costs or different functional properties. This competition could limit the 

industry's market share. 

❖ The price of raw jute is subject to fluctuations due to various factors, including weather conditions, 

agricultural practices, and market demand. Significant price increases can strain margins and affect 

profitability. 

❖ The jute industry is subject to various regulatory standards and environmental norms. Stricter 

regulations or changes in compliance requirements could increase operational costs and impact 

profitability. 

❖ Geopolitical tensions, logistical challenges, or natural disasters nowadays disrupt the supply chain, 

leading to delays and increased costs. The industry must navigate these uncertainties to ensure 

consistent supply and delivery. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 

Our internal control system incorporates a thorough risk management process that identifies, assesses, 

and mitigates risks across all areas of the business, including procurement, production, and sales. This 

is particularly crucial given the price volatility of raw jute and the global demand fluctuations. 

We have implemented automated financial controls to ensure accurate and timely financial reporting. 

These controls are supported by advanced ERP systems that facilitate real-time monitoring of 

transactions and compliance with accounting standards. 

Internal audits are conducted regularly to assess the effectiveness of our operations and to identify areas 

for improvement. This includes audits of our production processes, inventory management, and supply 

chain operations, ensuring that we maintain high levels of efficiency and cost-effectiveness. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

The outlook for the jute industry in India and globally remains positive, driven by increasing demand 

for sustainable and eco-friendly products. As environmental concerns continue to influence consumer 

preferences and regulatory frameworks worldwide, jute, with its biodegradable and renewable 

properties, is well-positioned to play a significant role in the global shift towards greener alternatives. 

 

For FY 2025-26 and beyond, the Company anticipates continued growth in both domestic and 

international markets. Key drivers include: 

❖ As more countries and companies prioritize sustainability, the demand for jute products, 

particularly in packaging and textiles, is expected to grow. This trend presents significant 

opportunities for expansion and market penetration. 

❖ The Indian government’s ongoing support for the jute industry, through various subsidies and 

initiatives promoting the use of jute products, is likely to continue, providing a strong foundation 

for industry growth. 

❖ The Company plans to invest in research and development to innovate new jute-based products that 

cater to emerging consumer needs. Expanding our product portfolio will enable us to tap into new 

market segments and drive revenue growth. 

❖ To meet the anticipated rise in demand, the Company intends to further expand its production 

capacities, incorporating advanced technologies to enhance efficiency and output quality. 

❖ The Company is keen on exploring and entering new geographical markets, particularly in regions 

where jute is gaining popularity as an alternative to plastic and other non-biodegradable materials. 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT: 

The Company remains committed to upholding the highest standards of ethics and integrity in all its 

operations. The Code of Conduct serves as a comprehensive guideline for ensuring that the Company’s 

values are consistently reflected in the behavior and decision-making of its directors, employees, and 

stakeholders. This Code is rooted in our commitment to transparency, fairness, and responsibility, 

particularly in the context of the jute industry, where sustainable practices and ethical sourcing are 

paramount. 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

The jute industry is subject to fluctuations in market demand, raw material prices, and competition from 

alternative materials. Changes in these factors could impact the Company’s performance and 

profitability. 

The industry operates under a complex regulatory environment. Any changes in regulations or 

government policies, particularly those related to environmental standards or trade, could affect the 

Company’s operations and financial outcomes. 

Global and domestic economic conditions, including economic downturns or slowdowns, could 

influence consumer spending and demand for jute products, potentially impacting the Company’s 

growth prospects. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

 

 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 

 

Date: 26.08.2025                       

Place: Kolkata  
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Annexure-C 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Para C, clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 

Registered Office: 164/1, Maniktala Main Road, 

Mani Square Mall, Room No. 7E, 7th Floor, Kankurgachi, 

Kolkata – 700054, West Bengal 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Bangalore Fort Farms Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) for the purpose 

of issuing this Certificate in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V, Para C, clause 

(10)(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including status of 

Directors’ Identification Numbers (DIN) at the portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs i.e. 

www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company and its 

officers, I hereby certify that: 

“None of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on March 31, 2025 have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.” 

List of Directors as on March 31, 2025 

Sr. 

No. 
Name of Director DIN Present Designation Date of Appointment* 

1 Naba Kumar Das 02604632 Director 27-Sep-19 

2 Sundeep Kumar Tayal 10196518 Director 30-Sep-23 

3 Mahendra Singh 07692374 Managing Director 18-Jun-24 

4 Shalini Srivastava 10951727 Additional Director 3-Mar-25 

 

*Date of appointment is as per the MCA portal. 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is limited to expressing an opinion 

based on my verification. This Certificate does not constitute an assurance as to  

  

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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the future viability of the Company or the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Rahul Srivastava & Co. 

Practising Company Secretary 

 

(Signature) 

Rahul Srivastava  

FCS: F11828 | CP: 23592 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 3408/2023 

UDIN: F011828G001092261 

PR No.: 3408/2023 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 26-08-2025 
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ANNEXURE-D 

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

Kolkata 

Dear Sirs, 

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

 

b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company’s code of 

conduct. 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and we have: 

 

a) Evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 

financial reporting and 

 

b) Disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation 

of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or 

propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 

a) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 

b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements; and 
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c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 

of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system 

over financial reporting. 

 

For Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

 

 

 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 

DIN: 07692374 

 

 

Bidhan Chandra Roy 

Chief Financial Officer 

Date: 26.08.2025 

Place: Kolkata 
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